Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House 117 Botchergate, Carlisle,
Cumbria CA1 1RD
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

13 October 2020

To:

The Chair and Members of the County
Council Local Committee for Allerdale

Agenda
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR ALLERDALE
A meeting of the County Council Local Committee for Allerdale will be held as follows:
Date:
Time:
Place:

Wednesday 21 October 2020
1.00 pm
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_NjQ2NGNkNTAtYjI5Mi00ZGJhLThkYzYtY
mUxN2E1ZmY5ZDE2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%
22%3a%22ac4b077e-a758-4bc5-946535c192007704%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%222d96a7b8-fb4f48a2-a14bf8f782b4ea89%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%
7d

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Daniel Hamilton
Direct Line:
07920700299
Email:
daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk
This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria

MEMBERSHIP
Labour (6)

Conservative (6)

Mr AL Barry (Vice-Chair)
Lord R Liddle
Mr KA Little
Mr T Lywood
Ms C McCarron-Holmes
Mrs C Tibble

Mr A Bowness
Mr HGG Graham
Mr MA Johnson
Mr A Kennon
Mr J Lister
Mr AJ Markley (Chair)

West Cumbria Independent (2)

Independent (Non Aligned) (1)

Mr JS Holliday
Mrs M Rae

Mr S Stoddart

Liberal Democrat (1)
Mrs RC Hanson

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Agenda and Reports
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect
prior to the meeting. Copies will also be available at the meeting.
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –
www.cumbria.gov.uk
Background Papers
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

AGENDA
PART 1:

1

ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS
AND PUBLIC

MEETING INFORMATION

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_NjQ2NGNkNTAtYjI5Mi00ZGJhLThkYzYtYmUxN2E1ZmY5ZDE2%4
0thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22ac4b077e-a758-4bc5-946535c192007704%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%222d96a7b8-fb4f-48a2-a14bf8f782b4ea89%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
2

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
3

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item
on the agenda which comprises:1

Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

2

Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

3

Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have
a beneficial interest) and the authority
(a)

Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b)

Which has not been fully discharged.

4

Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5

Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
the authority for a month or longer.

6

Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)
(a)

The landlord is the authority; and

(b)
7

The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial
interest.

Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
(a)

That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the
area of the authority; and

(b)

Either –
(i)

The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii)

If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of
Conduct where these have not already been registered.
Note
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil
partners).
4

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of any item on the agenda.
5

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no petitions, statements or questions submitted at time of publication.
6

WORKINGTON TOWN DEAL

To consider a report from the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure regarding
the Workington Town Deal.
(Pages 5 - 10)
7

DATE & TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 9 November 2020 at 10am via Microsoft Teams.

Agenda Item 6
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR
ALLERDALE
Meeting date:
From:

21 October 2020

Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure

WORKINGTON TOWN DEAL
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

In September 2019 it was confirmed that Workington would be invited to put
forward a Town Deal proposal valued at up to £25m to deliver economic
growth. The case for this investment would need to be articulated through an
evidenced Town Investment Plan approved by the Town Deal Board.

1.2

It is proposed that the Workington Town Investment Plan will be submitted to
Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) at the
end of October. Projects proposed as part of the Town Deal submission are
identified below:







Port of Workington Logistics and Clean Energy Hub
Workington Innovation Centre
Townscape and connectivity improvements
Workington Sports Village
Opera House site works
Digital Skills Programme

1.4

This paper is inviting feedback on the emerging Town Investment Plan and
the key proposals within it. It is also seeking agreement to the provision of a
letter of support for the Town Deal submission which will be made by
Allerdale Borough Council as accountable body for the Town Deal. The
Town Investment Plan is currently being finalised ahead of submission to
MHCLG by the end of October.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The development of the Town Investment Plan presents an opportunity
to support the three Council Plan outcomes, these include:
 people in Cumbria are healthy and safe
 places in Cumbria are well connected and thriving
 the economy in Cumbria is growing and benefits everyone

5

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

It is recommended that Allerdale Local Committee agrees to provide a letter
of support for the Workington Town Deal submission and that delegation is
given to the Major Programmes Director in consultation with the Chair of the
Local Committee to provide the letter following approval of the final Town
Investment Plan by the Town Deal Board.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

Government policy is increasingly focused on securing the levelling-up of the
UK economy with policy recognising that raising productivity and economic
growth in the towns and cities of the North can help strengthen the UK
economy.

4.2

In September 2019 it was confirmed that Workington was among the 101
towns that would be invited to put forward a Town Deal proposal valued at
up to £25m to deliver economic growth.

4.3

The case for this investment would need to be articulated through an
evidenced Town Investment Plan. Development of this plan must be
overseen by a Town Deal Board with the District Council acting as
accountable body for funding received. The Government requires that the
Town Deal Board comprises a mix of the public and private sector, the third
sector and local MP. The Workington Town Deal Board is chaired by John
Coughlan of TSP Engineering. Cllr Alan Barry represents Allerdale Local
Committee as part of Cumbria County Council on the Town Deal Board.

4.4

The development of the Town Deal would come forward in two phases with
the first phase focused on the submission of the Town Investment Plan
containing a set of project proposals as the basis for agreement of heads of
terms with Government. Following this there would be a requirement to
develop Business Cases through which the detailed case for delivery
funding would set out.

4.5

In developing the Town Deal proposals, Government has advised that there
are three potential submission dates; the end of July, October and January
and it is proposed by the Board that the Workington submission will be made
in October.

4.6

To support the development of the plan, a clear vision was established to
support the identification of priority schemes. The vision for the plan is:
Workington is a vibrant and well-connected commercial, civic and
community hub for West Cumbria, loved by residents and visitors. Its
prosperity is being built on a manufacturing renaissance, clean energy
and a thriving town centre, powered by its skilled workforce and a
dynamic mix of large and small companies. The town offers everyone a
wealth of cultural, leisure, sporting and recreational activities. The
town centre is home to new residents, businesses and social
enterprise, as its attractive natural setting, built heritage and
accessibility is increasingly recognised across Cumbria and beyond.

6

Workington is a safe, healthy, affordable and sustainable community
that offers opportunities for all.
4.7

Guided by this vision and an aligned strategy, the Town Deal Board
identified six priority projects.







4.8

Port of Workington Logistics and Clean Energy Hub
Workington Innovation Centre
Townscape and connectivity improvements
Workington Sports Village
Opera House site works
Digital Skills Programme

Within the Town Investment Plan, it is anticipated that the County Council
would take a leading role in the delivery of the following two projects:


Through the Port of Workington Logistics and Clean Energy Hub it is
proposed that the Towns Fund can support the development of this hub,
the Port and adjacent land at Oldside as a centre for renewable energy
and logistics. To support this, funding would be used to bring forward
remediated development parcels on both the port and at Oldside with the
intention that the development of this proposal would link to the
development of the Port Masterplan. The cost of this project is estimated
at £4.8m.



There are also proposals to bring forward a scheme centred on
Townscape and Connectivity within the town centre. The focus of this
scheme is on boosting connectivity between the train station, the heart of
the town centre and along Central Way and to support the delivery of
new development sites together with connectivity to a revised sports
campus proposal. The cost of this project is estimated at £5m.

4.9

For both projects Local Committee and Workington Harbour Management
Committee will be closely engaged in the development of proposals and
business cases.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

The recommended option is to provide a letter of support to accompany the
Town Investment Plan submission to help secure investment in Workington.
The alternative option would be to not provide a letter of support. Failure to
provide a letter of support could undermine the case being made within the
Town Investment Plan.

5.2

Members could request changes or different focus within the Town
Investment Plan. These requests could be considered by the Town Deal
Board.

7

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource or value for money implications arising from the
recommendations in section 3 of this report.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

By virtue of paragraph 5.1.1 (b) of the Council’s Constitution, Local
Committee is authorised to liaise with other bodies delivering services in the
area, to seek to co-ordinate planned activities, and to improve services for
the residents of the area by working together as effectively as possible.
Accordingly, Local Committee is authorised to take the recommended
decision.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This paper is inviting feedback on the proposals emerging through the Town
Investment Plan. It is also seeking agreement to the provision of a letter of
support for the Town Deal submission which would be made by Allerdale
Borough Council as accountable body for the Town Deal Board. This would
be issued with the agreement of the Chair following receipt of the final Town
Investment Plan.
Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

13 October 2020

APPENDICES
No appendices
Electoral Division(s):
Seaton, St John’s and Great Clifton, St Michael’s, Moss
Bay and Moorclose, and Harrington
* Please remove whichever option is not applicable

Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?

8

N/A

No

If so, give details below.
Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Michael Barry, 07733302913, michael.barry@cumbria.gov.uk

9

This page is intentionally left blank

